
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

ABERDOVEY HARBOUR CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.30 am, THURSDAY, 22ND MARCH, 2018 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
 

Neuadd Dyfi, Aberdyfi, LL35 0NR 
 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Glynda O'Brien 

01341 424301 

GlyndaOBrien@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED: 14/03/18) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 

MEMBERSHIP: 
 
 
Gwynedd Council: 
 
Councillor Dewi Owen  
Councillor Anne Lloyd Jones  
Councillor Mike Stevens  

 
 
 
 
 

Co-Opted Members: 
 

Councillor Bob Tyrrell Aberdyfi Community Council 
Mr Nick Dawson Member of Outward Bound Wales 
Mr David Williams Member of Aberdyfi & Improvements 

Committee 
Mr Huw Evans Member of the Cardigan Bay Fisheries 

Association 
Mr Nigel Willis Member of Aberdyfi Boat Club 
Mr Desmond George Member of the Dyfi Yacht Club 
Councillor Brian Bates Member of the RNLI  
Mr John Eddington Member of the Aberdyfi Rowing Club 

 
 
 
 
 
Observers: 
 
Councillor Peter Read Pwllheli Harbour Consultative Committee 
Dr John Jones-Morris Porthmadog Harbour Consultative 

Committee 
Councillor Rob Triggs Barmouth Town Council 
Councillor Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 

Development 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

 

3.   URGENT MATTERS 
 

 

 To consider any items which are urgent matters in the opinion of the 
Chairman. 

 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

4 - 11 

 To receive and confirm the minutes of a meeting of the Aberdyfi Harbour 
Consultative Committee held on the 23 November 2017. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 
 

 

5.   REPORT BY THE MARITIME AND COUNTRY PARKS OFFICER 
 

12 - 32 

 To receive and consider a report by the Maritime and Country Parks’ 
Officer. 
 
(Copy enclosed) 

 
 

 

6.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 

 To note that the next meeting of the Aberdyfi Harbour Consultative 
Committee will be held on 2 October 2018. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



  

Minutes of a meeting of the Aberdyfi Harbour Consultative Committee that took place on 
23 November 2017 at Neuadd Dyfi, Aberdyfi  

 
 
PRESENT 

Cllr. Dewi Owen, Anne Lloyd Jones, (Gwynedd Council), Cllr. Bob Tyrrell (Aberdyfi Community 
Council), Mr Brian Bates (RNLI), Mr Dave Williams (Aberdyfi Advertising and Improvements 
Committee),  Mr Desmond George (Dyfi Yacht Club), Al Crisp (Outward Bound).   

Observers:  Mr Neil Storkey (Clerk/Observer on behalf of Aberdyfi Community Council) 
  Cllr. Rob Triggs (Barmouth Harbour Consultative Committee)  
 
Also in attendance:    
     
Officers 
 
Barry Davies - Maritime and Country Parks Officer 
William Stockford - Aberdyfi Harbour Master  
Glynda O’Brien - Member Support Officer  
Mererid Watt - Translator 
 
Apologies:  Councillor Ioan Ceredig Thomas (Cabinet Member - Economy), Cllr. Mike 
Stevens (Gwynedd Council), Mr Nick Dawson (Outward Bound), Mr Llŷr B Jones (Senior 
Manager Economy and Community)  
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

 
Resolved: To elect Councillor Dewi Owen as Chair of this Committee for 2017/18. 
 
2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

 
Resolved: To elect Councillor Anne Lloyd Jones as Vice-chair of this Committee for 
2017/18. 
 
 
3. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL CONNECTION 
 
No declarations of personal connection were received from any member present. 
 
4. MINUTES 
 
Submitted:    Minutes of a meeting of the Aberdyfi Harbour Consultative Committee 
that took place on 28 February 2017.  
 
Resolved: To accept and approve the minutes as a true record.  
 
4.1 Matters arising from the minutes - Item 4 (d) (i) Quay Wall  
 
The Chair noted his disappointment that an officer from Gwynedd Consultancy could not attend 
the meeting to give an engineering update on the developments with the quay wall work.  The 
Chair had attended a meeting recently with officers from the Gwynedd Consultancy Unit and he 
reported that from his understanding the latest position was that the estimate for the revised 
plans to re-develop the quay wall was £2.2m.  At present, approximately 75% of this cost could 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



  

be found via grants and European funding, however there was a deficit of 25% that was 
equivalent to £500,000.  At the previous meetings the possibility of attracting a third party to 
contribute to the costs was discussed and it would be possible to discuss this further at the next 
meeting of this Consultative Committee. It was suggested that all Committee Members 
considered asking for possible financial support and that this information was highlighted to 
members of all the organisations represented on the Harbour Committee.  It was understood 
that concern had been highlighted by Natural Resources Wales regarding the intention to 
extend the existing structure out by approximately a metre seawards and this would have an 
impact on habitats, but it was understood that they were now satisfied with the amended plans.   
It was further understood that the application would be presented and considered soon by the 
National Park Authority, namely the Planning Authority for Aberdyfi.  
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer added that he would arrange for copies of the plans to 
be available for inspection at the Harbour Master's office and he would circulate notes updating 
on the process in the last few weeks.   It was noted that it would be challenging to find £500,000 
and it was intended to look at every possible financial source.    
 
In terms of the time-schedule, it was trusted that the work could commence in April 2019. 
 
During the ensuing discussion the following points were highlighted: 
 

 In terms of attracting a local contribution, it was felt that £500,000 was challenging 
and would it be possible for the Council to consider sources from tourism streams.   

 That 2018 had been designated the Year of the Sea and there might be financial 
sources available from the Welsh Government.     

 It had been agreed in the past that the quay was an important resource for Aberdyfi 
and especially to support businesses, RNLI etc.    

 That Lord Dafydd Elis-Thomas had recently been appointed as the Minister for 
Culture, Tourism and Sport and it would be beneficial to have a discussion with him 
regarding any assistance that he could suggest.     

 Doing nothing to renovate the quay wall was not an option, as it would fall into the 
sea, however the path to reach this aim was difficult. 

 
Resolved: (a) To accept and note the above and to look forward to discuss the matter 
further at the next Consultative Committee in March 2018. 
 
  (b) That the amended plans and the latest report were available in the 
Harbour Master's office for further inspection by members of this Consultative 
Committee and members of the public.   
 
4.2 Item 4 (d) (ff) - Common Land / Storage, waste 
 
It was reported that the above land continued to be problematic with the public disposing all 
types of illegal waste on the land, including fridges, freezers, asbestos etc.  
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer explained that there was asbestos on the land and this 
had to be disposed by specialists and in accordance with strict guidance.  It was noted that the 
Services had earmarked approximately £10,000 for the clearance work with approximately 
£8,000 in addition to erect a secure fence in order that no one could dispose of litter or any 
illegal use of the land in the future.   It was trusted that the site would be cleared by the start of 
April 2018.   By the end of summer, it was hoped that there would be a tidy space available in 
the area to store pots and tackle for the fishermen who work regularly from Aberdyfi harbour.   
The Service was in discussion with a waste disposal company from Caernarfon to get an 
estimate to dispose the waste. 

Page 5



  

 
The representative from the Yacht Club noted they had a lease for a small section of the land 
and the Club would be willing to contribute financially and practically to dispose of illegal waste.   
The representative was asked to circulate a copy of the lease to officers at the first opportunity. 
 
A Member noted that once the land had been cleared, it would be a valuable and safe resource 
to store official equipment and in an ideal location.    
 
The Maritime Officer emphasised that fishermen needed to ensure that all their property, 
including fishing tackle of any type, had been stored in a safe way.   Any equipment identified as 
not being used or maintained for some time would be disposed.   
 
A Member suggested that it could be possible to find out who had illegally dumped material by 
investigating the serial numbers of the materials.  
 
It was noted as a matter of information that Clarach Waste Services in Aberystwyth undertook a 
weekly service for Tywyn and it might be worthwhile contacting them for a price to dispose 
waste.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above.   
 
 
5. THE MARITIME OFFICER'S REPORT 
 
Submitted:  The report of the Maritime and Country Parks Officer, Mr Barry Davies, 
updating the committee on Harbour management matters with specific reference to the 
following:- 
 
(a) Members were reminded that they needed to submit the constitution and minutes of the 
annual meeting of the organisations/institutions they represent on the Harbour Consultative 
Committee in order to ensure eligible membership of the Committee in accordance with the 
resolution of Gwynedd Council Cabinet in 2014.      The organisations who had not sent the 
relevant documents were as follows:    
 

 Aberdyfi Improvements Committee 

 Cardigan Bay Sea Fisheries Association 

 Aberdyfi Boat Club 

 Dyfi Yacht Club  

 Aberdyfi Rowing Club 
 
It was understood that Aberdyfi Partnership and Aberdyfi Chamber of Trade did not now exist.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above and these organisations were expected to 
forward the relevant documents to the Member Support Officer.    
 
(b) In terms of the numbers of moorings in the Harbour there had been a reduction of one 
compared to 2016 with an increase in the number of personal water-craft.   The weather had 
been disappointing and this had had an impact on the harbours across the County, however, it 
was pleasing to note that boats from Conwy had visited Aberdyfi harbour and it was trusted that 
they would visit again in the future.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
 

Page 6



  

(c) Marine Safety Code 
 
An inspection had been conducted by the Coastguard's Agency and stemming from their report 
reference was made to minor elements that needed to be addressed in Aberdyfi Harbour such 
as tidying up around the quay as effects and ropes had been stored on the quay in a way that 
may pose a risk.    The inspectors will visit the service in a year's time and the intention was to 
invite members of the Harbour Committees to one central meeting in order to receive 
information from the inspectors regarding the main issues of the Safety Code.  It was 
anticipated that the meeting would take place in Porthmadog.  
 
During the ensuing discussion the following points were highlighted: 
 

 That Outward Bound collaborated well with Harbour staff with all activities.    

 A wish to see moorings in the places where they were 15 years ago 

 In terms of safety, it was asked if there was any problem stemming from the use of 
personal water-craft.   

 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer and the Harbour Master responded to the above as 
follows:  
 

(i) Whilst sympathising with the Yacht Club regarding a space in the estuary as a 
result of the installation of the moorings, it was explained that the channel was 
narrowing and the Harbour Master always did his best not to take too much 
space and the willing cooperation of the Yacht Club was appreciated at all times.     

(ii) There had been an improvement in terms of problems with personal water-craft 
and once a national arrangement was accepted, a message could be sent out to 
all mariners   

 
Resolved: To accept and note the above.  
 
(ch)    Navigation 
 
It was reported that the Harbour Master did his best to keep the aids to navigation on station 
and an assurance was given that Buoy Number 2 would be on station before Easter.    
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above.  
 
 
(d) Maintenance 
 
The Harbour Master outlined his work programme over the winter period as follows:   
 

 Repair work at Picnic Island 

 Work on Buoy Number 2  

 Repair of boat  

 Work from now until Christmas placing timber on the wharf 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer noted that the Service had six vehicles, however, there 
was no vehicle in Aberdyfi or Barmouth.   It was trusted that a vehicle would be available before 
Christmas and one in Barmouth by the New Year.   The Harbour Master had been using his 
own vehicle to remove animals such as sheep, porpoises etc, from the beach.  
 

Page 7



  

With regards to the board-walk across the golf course, there was a need to contact relevant 
bodies for financial contributions for its repair.   The path had been closed, however it was 
trusted that work could be done at the start of the New Year.  
 
The Chair noted that it was difficult to understand why it had taken so long to get a vehicle for 
Aberdyfi and particularly when it was needed in rough weather.  Another Member added that the 
Harbour Master's responsibilities extended as far as Fairbourne and it was essential for him to 
have a vehicle to undertake his duties.   It was suggested that the matter should be brought to 
the attention of the Cabinet Member - Economy and to stress the fact that there was a real need 
for a vehicle for the Harbour Master in Aberdyfi.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
(dd) Staffing Matters 
 
It was reported that the partnership with the Aberdyfi Harbour Assistant worked excellently and 
the employment period had been extended to the end of December.    
 
The Chair took the opportunity, on behalf of the Consultative Committee, to thank the Harbour 
Master and the staff for their praiseworthy work.   
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
(e) Harbour and Grounds Matters       
 
(i) It was reported that pots were stored on the quay and it was stressed that there was a 
need for fishermen's cooperation to keep the area tidy for public protection.   In future it was 
trusted that it would be possible to have a safe space on the common land for storage.   It was 
also emphasised that commercial users should not park vehicles at the side of the quay for long 
periods, again because of the safety risk to the public, except for loading and unloading goods 
or fish.   Arrangements would have to change in 2018 and there might be an arrangement to 
have a parking permit for them to park in the car park.    
 
During the ensuing discussion the following was noted: 
 

 that pots and fishing tackle were a feature of a working harbour     

 the importance of having representation from the fishermen's society at this Consultative 
Committee's meetings.   It was suggested that a representative from the Fishermen's 
Society should be contacted on behalf of the Committee to ask if it would be possible to 
nominate an alternate member from amongst local fishermen to attend on his/her behalf 
if required          

 that safety issues were vitally important and a number of schemes over the years had 
borne fruit to try and improve public safety, such as suitable life jackets etc.  It was 
understood that the Scottish Government supplied life jackets free of charge and it was 
trusted that the Welsh Government would follow.   

 
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above and to contact a representative from the 
Fishermen's Society on behalf of the Consultative Committee, to ascertain if it would be 
possible to nominate a representative from amongst local fishermen to attend the 
Committee on his behalf when he could not attend the meeting.           
 
 
 

Page 8



  

(ii) Bathing Waters  
 
It was reported that the bathing waters results had improved in comparison with last year, with 
Cemetery Beach also continuing to be tested by Natural Resources Wales. 
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
(iii) Safety Signs 
 
It was reported that Maritime Service officers had held discussions with Josh Cooper from the 
RNLI, together with the two local members.   Locations had been agreed to erect the safety 
signage and it was trusted that there would be a final report before Christmas with the signs in 
place by 1 April 2018.    In terms of signs in Barmouth, it was trusted that these would be in 
place by August.  
 
In response to a member's enquiry regarding a post that holds the lifesaving buoy in Penhelyg 
Harbour, the Harbour Master confirmed that it would be replaced.  
 
An RLNI representative noted that they publicised the dangers of the sea and the importance of 
posting signs between Tywyn and Aberdyfi was noted and in particular raising awareness of rip 
tides.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above.  
 
(f)  Financial Matters 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer guided Members through the financial balance-sheet 
and noted as follows:  
 

 there was an underspend of £3,264 in staff costs  

 there was an underspend of £11,640 in grounds and buildings costs 

 there was an overspend of £32 in boat and vehicle costs  

 there was an overspend of £1,296 in tools and equipment costs  

 the income target was £5,594 short  
 
 
For the end of September 2017 it was noted that the income was £2,283 short. 
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
(ff) Fees and Charges 2017/18 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer noted that fees would increase by 2% on average for 
the 2017/18 financial year to meet with the service's budgetary challenge and income target. 
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
(g) Events 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Officer noted that it was pleasing to see so many varied 
activities in the community.  Specific reference was made to a journey in personal water-craft 
from Morfa Bychan to Aberdyfi during the summer and the arrangements on the day were 
applauded.   It was trusted that the activities would continue and would take place again next 
year.    However, it was noted that activities needed to be reviewed as part of the Dyfi Fest and 

Page 9



  

specifically health and safety elements on the quay (bouncy castle).  If Dyfi Fest takes place 
next year, it was suggested that the operator of the bouncy castle could have an electricity 
supply from the harbour rather than use a generator.  
 
In response to a request to re-locate the weather station as it was situated in the incorrect place 
on the quay, the Maritime and County Parks Officer suggested that Mr Des George discusses 
and agrees on a location with the Harbour Master at the first possible opportunity.    
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above.  
 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
(a) Bryn Llestair (Picnic Island) 
 
The Chair expressed his concern regarding the condition of the bridge that crosses to Picnic 
Island and they had to be ready to renovate the bridge. It was understood that Network Rail 
were aware of the condition of the bridge and it would be an opportunity to ask the company if 
they were willing to contribute towards the renovation costs. The Chair together with Cllr. Anne 
Lloyd Jones, intended to attend a joint meeting of the Shrewsbury-Aberystwyth Railway 
Committee and the Cambrian Coast Railway Conference on 24 November 2017 and they were 
more than willing to raise the matter there.   
 
In response, the Maritime and Country Parks Officer noted that the service had inspected the 
bridge and were aware of its importance to the community.  The matter of a financial 
contribution from Outward Bound was discussed approximately three years ago.  An 
application for capital had been submitted to the Council and it was trusted that the matter 
could be dealt with this year.  
 
The Harbour Master added that it was difficult to work on the bridge as the railway line was live 
and in terms of safety it was necessary to get inspectors at either side of the railway at a cost 
of approximately £2,000 a time.  
 
Resolved: To request that the Maritime and Country Parks Officer submits an update 
to the next Consultative Committee meeting.   
 
(b)  Sand Removal 

 
In response to an enquiry regarding sand clearance, the Maritime and Country Parks Officer 
confirmed that this had been programmed for March.  
 
Resolved: To accept and note the above. 
 
 
7. ELECTION OF OBSERVERS 
 
Resolved: To elect Mr Dave Williams as an observer to represent Aberdyfi Harbour 
Consultative Committee on the following: 
 

 Barmouth Harbour Consultative Committee 

 Porthmadog Harbour Consultative Committee 

 Pwllheli Harbour Consultative Committee 
 

 

Page 10



  

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 
Resolved: It was noted that the next meeting of this Consultative Committee would 
take place on 22 March 2018.  

 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.30am and concluded at 12.20pm.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN. 

Page 11



MEETING Aberdyfi Harbour Consultative Committee 

DATE 22 March 2018 

TITLE Update on Harbour Management Matters 

AUTHOR Maritime and Country Parks Officer 

 
 

1. Port Marine Safety Code 
 

1.1 The Safety Code is a 'live document' and is regularly reviewed by Service's harbour staff.  It 
is also necessary for the Service to receive the comments and views of the Consultative 
Committee Members on the suitability of the Safety Code, as well as observations on its 
contents regularly, in order that it may be reviewed as relevant to harbour activities, 
standard of aids to navigation, suitability of the by-laws, safety and day to day general work 
at Aberdyfi Harbour.  

 

1.2 Between the 19th and 21st of September 2017, a thorough inspection was carried out by 
Coastguard Agency's inspectors on the current safety arrangements and systems at 
Gwynedd municipal harbours in order to ensure compliance with the Port Safety Code.    

 

1.3 Following a review by the Coastguard Agency that took place in September 2017, the 
Service has received a report following the inspection by external experts.  A copy of the 
report is appended and the Service will act on the inspectors' recommendations during the 
next few months.  The Committee's observations are welcomed on the contents of the 
report. 

 

1.4 As reported to this Consultative Committee in the Autumn, the inspectors' initial opinion 
was that the Council complied generally with the requirements, however, some aspects 
needed to be adapted relating to recording duties and noting who is the Duty Holder and 
the Designated Person.   It is anticipated that this will need to be discussed further within 
the Council and that the Duty Holder's responsibility will transfer to the Council’s Cabinet in 
due course.   

 

1.5 Regarding the Designated Person, the Council has received support from Conwy Council 
and the Designated Person for Gwynedd harbours will be Conwy's Harbour Master.    It is 
essential that the Designated Person does not have a connection with the Council or the 
Harbour Authority in order that he/she is totally independent.  

 

1.6 During the inspection the inspectors visited the harbours of Aberdyfi, Porthmadog (centre 
of inspection work) and Pwllheli. They did not visit Barmouth due to time restrictions.   

 

1.7 It is emphasised that no improvement notice was issued relating to serious safety issues or 
arrangements; standards or shortcomings in the harbours.   The inspectors noted that there 
was an opportunity to tidy-up the area around Aberdyfi harbour quay as effects and ropes 
had been stored on the quay in a way that may pose a risk.  These matters have been acted 
upon by Service staff during the winter months. Observations were submitted regarding the 
lack of width of the navigation channel in Pwllheli harbour, although it is not anticipated 
that this would technically be a matter within the inspection procedure.  No observations 
were submitted on safety matters in Porthmadog harbour.  

 

1.8 Although the Port Marine Safety Code is regularly reviewed by the service, it is necessary to 
remind Members of the Consultative Committees of their duty to submit any observations 
on the suitability of the Safety Code and to receive observations on the work arrangements 
of the harbours so that the Code can be reviewed to ensure it is relevant to harbour 
operations and is locally appropriate.   Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 

1.9 The Coastguard Agency inspectors will re-visit the Council next autumn.   A review follow-
up is proposed on a date when the Porthmadog Harbour Consultative Committee is held, 
where members of all Gwynedd Harbour Consultative Committees will be invited to receive 
a presentation by the inspectors on matters associated to the Port Marine Safety Code.  This 
will also be an opportunity for Members of the Consultative Committees to question experts 
on matters concerning the Port Marine Safety Code and for the Inspectors to confirm the 
responsibilities for the contents and operation of the Safety Code.   
 

2. Navigation Matters 
 

2.1.1 It is anticipated that a detailed inspection of Aberdyfi aids to navigation will be conducted 
by Trinity House Lighthouse Authority inspectors on 14th August 2018.    
 

2.1.2 Currently there are Two Mariners’ Notices in operation in Aberdyfi harbour.  
 

2.1.3 Notice No. 1 - 12/01/2018 - 52°32.290’ N  004°04.637’ W Starboard Navigation Aid - No. 3 
QFl G is not on station  

 

2.1.4 Notice No. 2 - 05/02/2018 - 52°32.469’ N  004°02.861’ W  Navigation Aid YSM 4 knots - 
YSM FL.Y 2s- is not on station.  

 

2.1.5 It is proposed to ensure that the maintenance work on the Fairway Buoy is completed in the 
next few weeks to ensure that the buoy is ready to be re-located in the bay.   

 

2.1.6 The Navigational Aids maintenance work programme for the Harbour has been completed 
in accordance with the agreement, instruction and guidance of the Consultative Committee. 
An update of the current situation will be given to Members by the Senior Harbours Officer 
at the meeting. 

 

2          Maintenance  
 

2.2.1 At the meeting the Harbour Master will present the maintenance arrangements and work 
programme for the key elements of Aberdyfi Harbour. 

 
2.2.2 The Harbour Master will also submit a maintenance work programme to be undertaken at 

Aberdyfi Harbour during January - March 2018, and will provide an outline of the work 
programme to be undertaken in October - December 2018.  Feedback from Committee 
members is requested on any additional work that will need to be considered and 
included in the work programme.  
 

2.2.3 Unfortunately, due to technical matters there was no suitable vehicle available to complete 
some tasks.   It is confirmed that the Council has invested significantly and the service has 
received three new vehicles to serve the County's beaches in the future.  One vehicle is 
located in Aberdyfi to serve the area south of Friog.  
 

2.2.4 The moorings contractor has commenced work to re-locate moorings in Aberdyfi harbour.  
Although it is not anticipated that many boats will be launched before Easter, the 
contractor is aiming to ensure that some moorings are available for mariners if boats 
intend to launch.    All Council visitor moorings have been maintained to the expected 
standard.   It is essential that the moorings contractor submits a Mooring Quality 
Certificate to the Harbour Master prior to mooring any boat.    This is a requirement under 
the Harbour By-law.   
 

Page 13



2.2.5 Boardwalk - The Boardwalk, that leads across the sand dunes near the golf course, has 
been closed due to serious deficiencies in the structure.  Several key stakes have 
deteriorated which means that the path is unsafe for use and has been closed temporarily.   
The public continue to visit the beach and walk parallel to the Boardwalk but unfortunately 
this will cause damage and erosion to the sand dunes.  The path is not a public footpath 
and therefore there is no statutory requirement for the boardwalk to be repaired. 
 

2.2.6 As the Boardwalk is popular and vitally important to safeguard the sand dunes, the Service 
will make preparations to maintain the path during the next few months.   It is proposed to 
strengthen the Boardwalk by using plastic stakes.  Unfortunately, due to the lack of 
resources we cannot specify a date when the boardwalk will re-open.  As the position of 
the service budget is serious we will need to seek local financial support to contribute to 
the maintenance costs of the Boardwalk. 
 

2.2.7 The Cemetery Beach has been identified under the Bathing Water Directive and the water 
is monitored regularly during the bathing season by Natural Resources Wales.  As the 
cemetery beach is a bathing water beach we anticipate that the use of the beach will 
increase and this means that we need to consider the most suitable path to reach the 
beach.  The service has a supply of Sand Ladders and the Senior Beaches Officer will 
consider the suitability of these for the site.  
 

2.3 Picnic Island (Bryn Llestair) - The footbridge that crosses over to Picnic Island (Bryn 
Llestair) continues to cause concern.   Although the main structure of the bridge is in a 
safe condition, the timbers on the surface of the bridge have deteriorated.  It is proposed 
to re-surface the main section of the bridge with plastic material as used on the surface of 
the boat pontoon.   Despite submitting an application for financial assistance no capital 
funding was received for the work.  The bridge is inspected regularly by engineers from 
the Gwynedd Consultancy Unit.   The inspections are very important to ensure public 
safety and as the bridge crosses the main rail of the Cambrian Railway line.  

 
2.4 Pontoon - During the strong winds that had a disastrous impact and caused serious 

damage at Holyhead marina, less damage was caused to the pontoon at Aberdyfi harbour.  
We do not anticipate that it will be possible to restore the pontoon and it will be necessary 
to find alternative ways to store tenders in the Church Bay area in the future.  
Unfortunately, some floats were significantly damaged and caused litter pollution in a 
section of the harbour.  Staff have attempted to clear the litter, however, it is anticipated 
that the polystyrene balls will be seen on the foreshore for a long time. 
 

2.4.1 Safety Signs - The Service, jointly with the RNLI and a local representative from the 
Lifeboat, has completed a detailed review of all the safety signage around the Aberdyfi 
harbour area and Tywyn beach.   In response to the inspection and in consultation with the 
RLNI, the Service intends to order new signage that will be erected on several sites around 
the harbour and near the beach in Aberdyfi.     

 
2.4.2 The Service will consult further with Local members in Tywyn as minor amendments may 

be required to the information presented on the signs.    It is anticipated that Aberdyfi 
signs will be in place prior to the May Bank Holiday and Tywyn signs will be in place before 
the main summer holidays.   The Service, jointly with the RNLI has completed a detailed 
review of all the signs at the county's main beaches, and during 2018 we intend to extend 
the programme to renew signage to include every beach designated as Bathing Water. 
 

2.4.3 Between both sites it is anticipated that the total cost of the signage will be £12,500 with 
the design and preparatory work, namely preparing templates, at £500 (ex VAT).  Due to 
the nature of Aberdyfi beach it is anticipated that it will be necessary to take some signs Page 14



down from the site during the winter months to reduce any damage that may be caused 
by inclement weather.   The expenditure was funded partly via the TAIS scheme, namely 
the Welsh Government Tourism fund.   
 

2.4.4 Beach Leaflet - attached is a beach/harbour leaflet that was recently reviewed and we 
request the Members’ views on the contents of the leaflet.   It is proposed to produce the 
leaflet before Whitsun.    The Plan will also be exhibited on signs in suitable sites.  
 

2.4.5 F.L.A.G -2018 (Fisheries Local Action Group). The new F.L.A.G. period has commenced 
in Wales and an Officer has been appointed via an arrangement by Ceredigion Council, to 
lead the project.   Subject to the Chair's permission, the Chair of the FLAG Group will 
attend the meeting to report to this committee on F.L.A.G. matters.  No further details 
regarding the F.L.A.G programme have been received thus far.  The service will assist the 
group in order to ensure the success of any events organised in Aberdyfi.   It is understood 
that only applications for revenue grant assistance will receive FLAG approval, and not 
applications for capital financial assistance. 
 

2.4.6 Sand Removal - 2018. It is envisaged that sand removal from the beach will commence 
on the 12th of March 2018.  The period and size of the work will be dependent on the 
quantity of sand that has accumulated in the area.  It is anticipated that the accumulated 
sand on the Car Park and on the small 'promenade' will also be cleared as part of the 
contract.  In order to try and prevent sand from blowing off the beach towards the car park 
and the high street, harbour staff have extended the fence near the side of the promenade.  
 

2.4.7 Containers - Several containers used to store sailboarding and canoeing equipment are 
parked on land near the Yacht Club's compound.    The containers are on Council land and 
not on land leased to a third party.  Owners of the containers have had unauthorised use 
of the site for some time.     
 

2.4.8 The condition of a number of the containers is a matter of concern, and there has been no 
obvious attempt made to maintain the site or the containers by the owners. Due to the 
lack of maintenance and a lack of information regarding who owns these containers, the 
Council via the Harbour Master will take steps to remove the containers from the site 
unless the owners submit their full details to the Council and agree to pay an annual fee 
for the right to place the container on the site.    

 
2.5 Staffing Matters 
 
2.5.1 The employment period of the Aberdyfi Harbour Assistant (seasonal) ended on the 30th 

September 2017.  As reported in the autumn, the employment contract was extended up 
until 31 December, 2017 for three days a week.  In order to ensure the continuation of the 
service and the completion of key work the post has been extended on the basis of three 
days a week (Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday) until the end of March 2018.  It is hoped 
that Harbour Assistants posts at Aberdyfi, Barmouth and Porthmadog will return to be full-
time in April 2018 until 30 September 2018.   

 
2.5.2 Despite the serious financial position and the cut in the Service budget it is proposed to 

appoint a Beach Assistant for Aberdyfi in 2018.   Although a Beach Assistant will be 
appointed no application will be submitted for a Beach Award for Aberdyfi Beach in the 
future.  It is the Council's decision to submit applications for a beach award where the 
quality of bathing waters attains the 'Excellent' standard.   Bathing water quality in 
Aberdyfi reaches the 'Satisfactory' standard.   This is extremely heartening as in the past 
the standard of water quality did not reach the lowest standard.   

 Page 15



2.5.3 Quay Wall An update regarding the plans and latest developments about the Quay Wall 
will be presented for Members' attention at the meeting. Posters have been distributed 
locally drawing the public's attention to a 'Drop In' session held by the Council where there 
will be an opportunity for the public to discuss the plans with engineers from Gwynedd 
Consultancy.    The 'Drop In' session will take place at Neuadd Dyfi between 14.00 and 19.00 
hours on 22nd March 2018.  Everyone is welcome. A copy of the poster is attached for 
information.  
 

2.5.4 Common Land / Storage Waste Work to clear the site where waste had been deposited 
illegally has commenced.   The appointed contractor has cleared an extensive section of the 
site, however, there is asbestos waste and pots, a fridge and freezer that still need to be 
disposed.   There will be an additional cost attached to this and the service will organise this 
work soon.  

 

2.5.5 As reported to Committee in October, it is vitally important that individuals with fishing 
tackle on the site ensure that all their equipment is tidy and stored correctly.  Unfortunately, 
there has been no cooperation with this locally.  In the second campaign it is stressed that 
any fishing tackle will be disposed of if the Service is of the view that the equipment is 
stored incorrectly and unused.    

 

2.5.6 Unfortunately, we continue to stress once again the requirement for the fishermen, the 
Fishing Association representative and other representatives to ensure that a clear message 
regarding this intention is given without delay to the fishermen.  Despite our warnings, no 
attempt has been made by the fishermen to clear materials or to store equipment tidily on 
the site.   

 

2.5.7 The cost of the initial work was as follows: - Hire of plant = £410.00. Skip hire = £100 (x5 
skips) with the cost of waste disposal at £150 per tonne. 30 tonnes of waste was transported 
for landfill and this means that the landfill cost is £4,500.   Contractor work cost = £2,450.00. 
All costs exc. VAT  

 
2.6 Fees and Charges 2018/19.  The spreadsheet for the proposed fees in 2018 in Aberdyfi 

Harbour, has already been submitted to the Harbour Committee requesting Members' 
observations.  Although it was reported that the inflation rate of Gwynedd Harbours for 
2018/19 would be 1.78% the inflation percentage has been reviewed following a number of 
factors that have an impact on inflation.   It is confirmed that the inflation rate for Aberdyfi 
Harbour in 2018/19 will increase to 3.44% with the average inflation for Gwynedd harbours 
at 2.9%.   This means that the harbour's income target will increase to a target of £25,560 in 
2018/19.  The total income target of the Maritime Service is £2,073.000.   
  

2.7 As the service has already corresponded with harbour customers it is proposed to suggest 
that the fees and charges continue to increase by 2% on average in the 2018/19 financial 
year.  As a result of the challenging targets and as there might be a deficit in income it will 
be necessary to ensure that the Service identifies alternative income opportunities and 
reduces possible expenditure during the next financial year.  

 

2.8 The 2018/19 inflation increase for Maritime and Country Parks is as follows: -  
 

                   

 

 

 

 Page 16



Original Inflation   Reviewed Inflation 

 Beaches-    3.10%    4.43% 

 Hafan -    1.73%    2.50% 

 Pwllheli -    1.78%    2.53% 

 Harbours -    1.78%    2.90% 

 Aberdyfi -    1.78%    3.44% 

 Victoria Dock -  1.45%    2.08% 

 Parc Padarn -  3.25%    3.73% 

 Parc Glynllifon-  3.00%   3.89% 
 

3         Financial Matters 
 

3.2 A balance sheet reporting on the financial position of Aberdyfi harbour up to the end of 
February 2018 will be circulated at the meeting.   
 

3.3 The service will continue to commit financial resources for the following:-   

 Maintenance and purchasing of Navigation Aids and Lamps. Purchase of new chains 

 Maintenance of equipment and furniture.  

 Maintenance of boat and boat trailer 

 Extending staff employment periods. 

 Grounds Maintenance. 

 New engines Aberdyfi Harbour Patrol Boat. Delay with project with intention to 
complete before end of May 2018.  

Page 17



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 1  

 

1 

 

Type: 
 
 

Port Marine Safety Code Health Check 

Port: Gwynedd Council as the Harbour 
Authority for Porthmadog, Pwllheli, 
Barmouth and Aberdyfi 

Purpose: External Visit 
 
 
 

Author: Date Signature 

Forkanul Quader 
David Turner 

19 & 20 September 2017  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Version History Date Remarks 

Ist Draft 21 September 2017  

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 2  

 

2 

 
 
 

 

GLOSSARY 

 

ALARP  As Low as Reasonably Practical 

CHA   Competent Harbour Authority 

CPD   Continuing Professional Development 

DP   Designated Person 

HM   Harbourmaster 

GTGP  Guide to Good Practice 

KPI   Key Performance Indicator 

MAIB   Marine Accident Investigation Branch 

MPX   Master/Pilot Exchange 

PMSC  Port Marine Safety Code 

PEC   Pilot Exemption Certificate 

MAIB   Marine Accident and Investigation Branch 

MSMS  Marine Safety Management System 

SHA   Statutory Harbour Authority 

VTS   Vessel Traffic Service 

LPS                     Local Port Services 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 3  

 

3 

 

1.     Background 
 
Gwynedd Council is the statutory harbour authority having municipal status for the 
following harbours – Pwllheli, Porthmadog, Barmouth and Aberdyfi. The ports mainly 
cater for leisure and fishing activities and are located in the north-west area of Welsh 
coast adjacent to Cardigan Bay.   
 
Prior to the visit the MCA sent an aide-memoire to the Harbourmaster and requesting 
comments that corresponded to the PMSC and the relevant section of the port’s 
Safety Management System. The purpose of this is to assist the MCA with the 
“Health Check” and forms the basis for further examination during the visit. While 
the Gwynedd Council has the responsibility of the duty holder, the Maritime and 
Country Park’s Officer oversees the operational activities along with a team of 
Harbourmasters.    
 

2.     Introduction 
 
The Maritime & Coastguard Agency (MCA) conducted a “Health Check” of Gwynedd 
Harbour Authority Safety Management System which was reviewed to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of the Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC). 
 
The visit was carried out on the 19th and 20th September with Porthmadog Harbour 
office being used as a base for the visit. The team from the MCA was led by Forkanul 
Quader and David Turner. 
 
The Maritime and Country Park Officer provided facilities for the conduct of the 
verification process at the Porthmadog harbour office, including access to all 
necessary documentation. 
 
This report summarises observations made during the visit and is not to be construed 
as a statement of compliance to all or part of the Code. 
 

  

Page 20



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 4  

 

4 

3. Scope 
 
The purpose of a “Health Check” visit is to assess whether the port is, on the days 
in attendance, effectively implementing the PMSC. The PMSC applies to all Harbour 
Authorities in the UK with statutory powers and duties. The visit is designed to 
provide advice and to assist the port in implementing the Code and in so doing, to 
enhance port safety.   
 
This scope of this health check covered the following elements: 
 

1, Port details Y 

2. Designated Person Y 

3. Duty Holders Y 

4. Duties and Powers Y 

5. Consultation and Information Dissemination Y 

6. Risk Assessment Y 

7. Safety Management System Y 

8. Powers and Enforcement Y 

9. Pilotage and Passage Plans N/A 
Porthmadog 

only 

10. Tugs, Workboats and Marine Services Y 

11. Conservancy Obligations Y 

12. Directions Y 

13. Training Y 

14. Vessel Traffic Services N/A 

15. Published Documents Y 

16. Final check Y 

  
 

Following a visit, the MCA “Health Check” team produce a brief report which 
summarises examples of enhancements agreed with the harbour authority. This 
report summarises the areas of enhancements observed during the visit and is not 
construed as a statement of compliance to all or part of the code. 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 5  

 

5 

4.   
 
Overview  
 
Gwynedd Council is the Statutory Harbour Authority (SHA) for four ports - Pwllheli, 
Porthmadog, Barmouth and Aberdyfi. All of those fall within the provisions of the Port 
Marine Safety Code (PMSC). The main area of coastal jurisdiction extends from 
Abergwyngregyn to the east of Bangor through to Victoria Dock at Caernarfon on 
the Menai Strait and to Aberdyfi in Cardigan Bay. Each Harbour is managed on a 
day to day basis by the Council’s appointed Harbourmaster and each port is 
technically operated under unitary policies and control by the Council. Porthmadog 
Harbour has the status of Competent Harbour Authority (CHA) and provides a 
pilotage service as and when required, although such a service has not been 
required or requested for many years. Porthmadog is the only harbour with such 
status within Gwynedd Council and the status of the CHA is under continuous 
review.  
 
Under Gwynedd Harbour the potential maximum available mooring berths at each 
port are:  
Porthmadog - 238, Pwllheli – 490 (of which 412 are Marina Berths), Barmouth – 140, 
and Aberdyfi - 120. These are maximum potential mooring possibilities with 2017 
mooring boats being Porthmadog - 135, Pwllheli – 490 (of which 306 are Marina 
Berths and 60 on other moorings), Barmouth – 86, and Aberdyfi - 78. 
 
Visit  
 
The visit was carried out on the 19th and 20th September 2017. The Maritime & 
Country Park Officer as well as the Senior Harbour Officer and the Harbourmaster 
(Porthmadog) demonstrated a clear commitment to the PMSC and assured the 
visiting team they were undertaking necessary steps towards implementing the 
provisions of PMSC.   

 
Gwynedd attendees during the Health Check were as follows: - 

 
 Mr. Barry Davies – Maritime & Country Park’s Officer  

Mr. Arthur Francis Jones – Senior Harbour Officer 
Malcolm Humphreys – Harbourmaster (Porthmadog) 
William Williams – Harbour Manager (Pwllheli - part attendee) 
William Stockford – Harbourmaster (Aberdyfi – part attendee) 
Capt. Mathew Forbes – Designated Person (Conwy Harbourmaster) 
 

Page 22



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 6  

 

6 

 

4.1 Gwynedd Harbour Findings  
 
Enhancements 
 
Whilst some specific amendments were identified, in general it was seen that a 
substantial and well documented approach had been taken towards drawing up a 
Marine Safety Management System (MSMS), and associated Marine Operation 
Plan. However, the Health Check team found that vital tasks including internal audit, 
external audit and correct identification of the Duty Holder remained incomplete. It is 
worth mentioning here that the Health Check team found observed operational 
processes to be in good order. 
 
The findings below are associated with comments and observations on the status of 
the Marine Operational Plan (SMS). The current Marine Operational Plan will need 
revisiting to align the Marine Safety Management System with the PMSC and GTGP.  
 
The Maritime and Country Park’s Officer, Senior Harbour Officer, the relevant 
Harbourmaster’s and the Designated Person agreed that a further health check visit 
will have to be undertaken by the MCA Health Check team during the next 12 month 
period.   
 
Several enhancements that would improve Gwynedd Council’s implementation of 
the Code were identified. These are: 
 
Duty Holder 
 
Currently the Deputy Head of Economy & Community (DHEC) Department is the 
assumed Duty Holder. The Maritime and Country Park’s Officer oversees the 
operation of all four ports under the DHEC. In accordance with PMSC, a member of 
the management team or a Board can be the Duty Holder having public 
accountability for PMSC Code. 
 
It is understood that the current DHEC is the Duty Holder for Gwynedd Harbour 
Authority (GHA), and is not an Elected Council member and so therefore does not 
have direct public accountability. While council members can collectively (and 
individually) sign up to the PMSC, they should consider forming a core committee to 
take up the responsibility for the Duty Holder or nominate a council member to act 
as the duty holder. The Duty Holder can then be assisted by the appointed DHEC.  
                                                                                GTGP: 2.2.19, 2.2.23, 2.2.31 
 

Page 23



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 7  

 

7 

 
Designated Person 
 
The Harbour Authority has recently appointed a qualified Designated Person. This 
appointment has not been officially finalised. The DP appointment therefore needs 
to be formalised by letter to the appointed DP.                                                                           

GTGP: 2.2.25 
 
MSMS 
 
The Harbour Authority has opted to use Marine Operations Plan as their MSMS. The 
document needs to be reviewed to reflect the correct roles and responsibilities of the 
duty holder. The Current Operation Plan also needs to be formalised into a MSMS. 
The Harbour Authority can use a common MSMS and each port can then develop 
risk based system to address port specific operational risks.  
                                                                                       GTGP: 4.1.3, 5.1.5                                                                                     
Internal Audits 
 
No record was found of any internal audits. Internal audits should be carried out at 
least once a year. 
                                                                               GTGP: 5.1.1 
 
DP Audit 
 
There were no records of any audits being carried out by the DP in accordance 
with GTGP section 2.2.30. There was no evidence of any report being submitted to 
the Duty Holder or to the governing body. The DP should submit a monitoring 
report to the Duty Holder and to the management board.                                                

GTGP: 2.2.30  

 

External Audit 
 
No record was found of any external audit. External audits should be carried out at 
regular intervals.                                                                    GTGP: 5.1.1 

 

Safety Plan 
 
Gwynedd Harbour Authority (GHA) should consider publishing a 3 yearly Safety 
Plan in accordance with PMSC showing how the standards will be met.      

GTGP: 2.2    

Page 24



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 8  

 

8 

 
Conservancy: GLA/Trinity House 

 
GHA should obtain a letter from GLA/Trinity House once all outstanding 
conservancy works have been carried out.                      GTGP: 7.5.5 

 
PMSC Compliance 

 
When content that they comply with the PMSC GHA should send a letter to the 
MCA. This has not been done since 2013. 

                                                    PMSC: 2.31 GTGP: 2.12 
 

CHA Status 
 

GHA should review their CHA status to see whether CHA status is required with 
full compliance.                                                            GTGP: 9.2 

 
H&S 

 
GHA to review current H&S inspection status to cover marine as well as associated 
pier activities.                                            GTGP: 6.6                                        

 
Training Matrix 

 
It was agreed that the compilation of a staff training matrix and associated training 
plan would be beneficial and therefore needs to be completed. 
                                                                                    GTGP: 12.2.1    
Pwllheli Harbour silting 

 
It was observed that the approach channel into the harbour continues to silt up. 
This has significantly reduced the width of available water in the most critical area 
of the harbour approaches. The limiting factors preventing adequate dredging 
should therefore be addressed. 

                                                            GTGP: 7.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 9  

 

9 

BEST PRACTICES 

 

Consultation 
 
The incorporation of the Aberdyfi commercial fishing sector into harbour 
consultative committee meetings was a positive step forward and the availability of 
EFF funded Mullion PFDs for local fishermen should be explored further. 

 

Marine Facilities 
 

The facilities at Porthmadog were comprehensive and accompanied by well-
structured checklists and procedures. Of particular note were the anchoring weights 
made from concrete and fitted inside tyres which could be wheeled into place. 

 
Risk assessment 

 
All the ports visited maintained well-structured risk assessments. 

  

5. Conclusion 
 
It was evident that; the Maritime and Country Park’s Officer has made a lot of effort 
in preparing the newly developed MSMS and associated procedures. The document 
appears to broadly reflect current practices. 
 
The priority now is to start a review of the current Safety Management System and 
the Operational Plan to formally operate and regulate marine activities under the 
SMS. This is vital in moving towards PMSC compliance as the principles of the SMS 
do not currently appear to have been followed through.  
 
It is therefore the intention of the MCA to conduct a further health check within 12 
months to verify that the SMS and its associated procedures are functioning and 
regulating harbour activities effectively. That would help provide assurance that the 
harbour is compliant with the PMSC.  A suggested core committee of Duty Holder 
and the Council members should therefore be ready to recognise their roles and 
responsibilities under the PMSC and provide the senior level staff with the 
appropriate support and resources to finish off the good work which has already 
been initiated. 

 
The Gwynedd Council as the Duty Holder should also recognise that whilst the 
Harbour Authority is presently not fully compliant, the Council Members collectively 

Page 26



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 10  

 

10 

and possibly remain particularly exposed to liabilities from any incidents of 
negligence which may occur within the harbour.   
 

 
6. Harbour Authority Comment 
 
All Gwynedd Council Officers that were involved with the work undertaken by the 
Health Check team whom were acting on behalf of the MCA fully appreciated the 
positive and constructive method used to undertake the health check. The 
professional, informative and courteous approach taken by the Health Check team 
was fully appreciated. 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Unit has demonstrated compliance with the 
principles of the PMSC since its introduction and has taken appropriate action to 
ensure compliance within the code’s main principles. 
 
The positive comments and suggested enhancements provided by the Health Check 
team will be actioned accordingly and are to be implemented before the visit 
scheduled for October/November 2018. 
 
The Maritime and Country Parks Unit recognises the potential that Gwynedd Council 
Members possibly remain exposed to liabilities from potential incidents and a defined 
Duty Holder is to be considered and established if such procedures is permitted.   
 
However, it is emphasised that all harbour staff are suitably trained and qualified in 
Health & Safety processes. A procedure is already in existence to identify all 
potential risks within the harbours under the jurisdiction of the service.  Action in 
accordance with the ALARP principle has, and will continue to be taken, to ensure 
that all identified risks remain as low as is reasonably practicable in order to eliminate 
any such exposure. 
 
Through a consultative process, Gwynedd Council as a responsible Local Authority, 
ensures that the harbours under its jurisdiction are provided with a high level of 
administrative support and service.  This is required to ensure that the Harbour 
Consultative Committees for each individual harbour, function in accordance with 
the expectations of the communities they serve.  
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 

Job Ref:  MNA 053/010/0480 

Date:  08 October 2017 

Page No. 11  

 

11 

The Harbour Consultative Committee meetings are held twice annually at Aberdyfi, 
Barmouth, Porthmadog and Pwllheli.  They are essential to the service. Members 
are fully conversant with the contents of the Port Marine Safety Code and the subject 
matter is a primary agenda item at each Committee meeting.  
 
This ensures that the Council receives feedback on all matters relating to harbour 
operations under the remit of the Port Marine Safety Code. Having a wide range of 
local representatives elected on each Consultative Committee ensures that the 
Council is provided with a broad range of expertise from across the marine industry 
and the marine leisure and fishing community. 
 
The observation conveyed by the Heath Check team identified that currently the 
Deputy Head of Economy & Community (DHEC) Department is the assumed Duty 
Holder with the Maritime and Country Park’s Officer overseeing the operation of all 
four ports under the jurisdiction of Gwynedd Council.  
 
Whilst the DHEC is the senior line manager for the service the Council Board 
(previously identified as the Council Cabinet) had previously been identified as the 
collective Duty Holder for the PMSC within Gwynedd. 
 
The DHEC is the Duty Holder for Gwynedd Harbour Authority (GHA), and is not an 
Elected Council member and so therefore, as noted by the Health Check team, 
possibly does not have direct public accountability.  
 
The Maritime and Country Park’s Officer will ensure that this matter regarding the 
DH is clarified and confirmed as a matter of urgency.  
                                                                                 
We are of the collective conclusion that despite earlier apprehension the Health 
Check was of great benefit to the Maritime and Country Park’s Unit and the service 
looks forward to regular dialogue with the Health Check team on matters relating to 
the PMSC for Gwynedd and look forward to the Health Check review in 
October/November 2018 where we envisage that the issues raised by the health 
Check team will have been addressed. 

 

Page 28



 

 

 
 

 

Please abide by the following rules for a safe and enjoyable 

day  

Sea Activities: 

 Launch your craft in the designated area and keep to the 4 KNOT speed restriction 

within the harbour (see plan) 

 All craft must minimise their wake within 50 metres of another craft 

 Keep clear of the restricted area which is designated by yellow buoys and observe 

all byelaws - your life and others may depend on it (see plan) 

 Navigate all power driven vessels safely and responsibly - be considerate to others 

 ‘International Regulations for the Prevention of Collisions at Sea’, and the ‘British 

Water-Ski Federation’s’ regulations shall apply at all times 

 Before venturing to sea always check the local weather forecast with the Harbour 

Master or listen to weather bulletins on your VHF radio 

 All powered craft must be registered with Gwynedd Council prior to launching and 

display the registration permits in a visible position on both sides of the craft 

 A launching fee is payable before launching is permitted – please visit the 

harbour office before launching  

 DANGER - Do not swim in the designated launching area or amongst the 

moorings within the harbour 

 Beware of strong fast flowing currents 

 All powerboats towing water skiers or inflatable toys / dinghies shall be occupied by 

at least two competent persons - driver and observer 

 Take care with inflatable beds and dinghies as tidal currents and offshore winds can 

quickly take you out to sea 

 Maintain a safe and constant speed when in close proximity to marine animals. Do 

not deliberately disturb wildlife 

 

On the Beach: 

 

Steep shelving beach – beware of deep water and strong currents 

 

 DANGER – Do not climb or jump from the jetty structure

Page 29



 

 

 Park vehicles and trailers sensibly - do not 

restrict access for others and be mindful of 

the tide

 Be extremely vigilant and alert whilst 

manoeuvring your vehicle on the slipway and in 

the car parks - keep within the 5 M.P.H. speed 

limit in the launching area - vehicles 

contravening the regulations will be excluded 

from launching 

     Vehicles, motorcycles and quad bikes are strictly prohibited from driving on the beach 

or on the dunes - it is an offence punishable with a fine of up to 

£20,000. 

 If you see someone in difficulty dial 999 immediately and ask for the Coastguard, and 

contact the Harbour Master or Beach Supervisor 

 For the treatment of minor injuries you may request assistance from the Harbour 

Master or Beach Supervisor 

 Power Kites, Land Yachting and Beach ‘Buggying’ activities are strictly prohibited on 

the beach between March and November.  

 Do not dig or burrow into sand dunes - they can collapse suddenly and 

unexpectedly 

 Take you litter home or dispose of it in one of the bins or recycling units on 

the promenade or in the car park. 

    Do not take your dog into the dog exclusion zone or allow your dog to run 

free to foul the beach (see plan) - it is an offence, punishable with a fine of up 

to £1000. Dogs must be kept on a lead if directed. 

Do not intentionally harm wildlife and coastal habitats. 

Do not behave in a manner that will affect the enjoyment or safety of others 

on the beach. 

YOU MUST COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS OUTLINED IN THIS LEAFLET 

AND CONFORM TO ALL INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN BY THE HARBOUR MASTER 

OR BEACH SUPERVISORS FOR YOUR OWN AND OTHER’S SAFETY. 

BE SAFE 

Safety in the harbour and on the beach is very important - be aware of the 

dangers and be safe. 

 
USEFUL PHONE NUMBERS: 

 

Aberdyfi Harbour Master: 01654 767626 / 07879 

433148 

Maritime Office: 01758 704066 

Natural Resources Wales: 03000 653000 

In an Emergency Call 999 

Page 30



P
age 31



Gwelliannau Wal y Cei, Aberdyfi 

Arddangosfa gyhoeddus

Dydd Iau 22ain o Fawrth, 2018

Rhwng 14:00 - 19:00

Lleoliad: Neuadd Dyfi

Quay Wall Improvements, Aberdyfi 

Public Exhibi�on 

Thursday the 22nd of March, 2018

Between 14:00 - 19:00

Loca�on: Neuadd Dyfi

Page 32


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 REPORT BY THE MARITIME AND COUNTRY PARKS OFFICER
	Appendix 1 - Port Marine Safety Code Health Check
	Appendix 2 - Aberdyfi Beach Leaflet
	Appendix 3 - Plan
	Appendix 4 - Quay Wall Improvements - Drop-in Session Poster


